Monday, 13 January 2014 at 6.00 pm



General Licensing Committee

Members: Councillor Shuttleworth (Chairman), Councillors Ansell, Coles,

Cooke, Hearn, Liddiard, Murdoch, Warner and West

(Apologies for absence were reported from Councillors Murray, Stanley, Thompson and Ungar)

1 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2013

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2013 were submitted and approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct record.

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as required by the Code of Conduct

None were received.

3 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Fee Amendment.

The Committee considered the report of the Senior Specialist Advisor in relation to the proposed amendment to the hackney carriage and private hire licensing fees.

The Council's hackney carriage and private hire licensing function were self-financing. The fees that are levied are reviewed in consultation with Financial Management to ensure that there was neither a surplus nor deficit in the hackney carriage and private hire account.

The Senior Specialist Advisor gave an overview to the Committee on the general principles of fee-setting. Income was raised by licence fees in order to ensure that council tax payers were not subsidising the work involved in the administration of licensing functions. The fees were not used to increase revenue but instead were set at a level which aimed to cover the cost of administrating the function within the constraints of regulation.

Case law confirmed that approximate calculations were sufficient to discharge the requirement that the licensing authority endeavour to achieve a break even position. Surpluses in addition to deficits are required to be carried over year on year in order for local authorities to not make a profit. For example a shortfall in one year could be rectified by increasing costs the following year, although the authority does not have to adjust the licence fee every year to reflect a previous deficit or surplus.

It is a requirement that such fees are reasonable and imposed 'with a view to recovering the costs of issue and administration'. This included such matters as the reasonable cost of carrying out vehicle inspections to decide if a licence should be granted and the costs of assessing the suitability of applicants. This also included the cost of badge issuing and other administrative tasks as well as enforcement undertaken in respect of licensed drivers.

Currently individuals are required to obtain either a hackney carriage driver's licence, a private hire driver's licence or a dual driver's licence to enable them to drive a licensed vehicle. All vehicles that a driver utilised were required to be licensed and in addition private hire operators required a licence in order to take bookings on behalf of the drivers/vehicles within their fleet. Current licence fees were included in Figure 1 as part of section 3.2 of the report. The private hire operator fees levied was dependant on the number of private hire vehicles that the operator has within the fleet. The current fees for private hire operators were included in Figure 2 as part of Section 3.3 of the report.

The last amendment made to the fees took place in April 2001; therefore no change in the fees had been made in over twelve years. Appendix 1 of the report tabulated all taxi and private hire fees and charges currently levied, including the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) fee of £44. This was an additional fee added to the relevant driver's licence fee and was subsequently paid by the Council to the DBS. The Committee was advised that going forward it was envisaged that the trade may utilise the DBS online service directly at a cost of a £15 fee. This could result in the additional payment of £44 not being included in the driver licence fee which the licensing authority charges all drivers.

The proposed table of licence fees was laid out in Figures 3a and 3b of the report. It was proposed that the hackney carriage and private hire driver licences be removed, whist retaining the dual driver's licence, so as to rationalise the fee structure. It was envisaged that all drivers would utilise a universal (dual) driver's licence that could be used in conjunction with either a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence. The single fee, that would be payable every 3 years, would enable a driver to drive either a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle. The proposals also ensured that the hackney carriage and private hire licence fees were set at an equal level of £150.

The Council's abridged accounts for 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 were included in Figure 4 as part of 3.11 of the report. Whilst expenditure had exceeded income during the last two financial years, this had been offset by the surplus which had been carried forward. The Committee was advised that the Council's projected budget at the 2013/14 year end for the costs of administrating and ensuring compliance with the scheme indicated a potential budget deficit of £12,000. The proposed licence fee amendment was intended to address the projected deficit in the short to medium term. A comparison with neighbouring authorities for licensed vehicles and driver's fees were included in Figure 5 as part of 3.13 of the report. The data clearly indicated that the proposed level of fees were highly

competitive. Councillor Cooke enquired whether the driver licence fee column, part of Figure 5 was for a dual licence. This was confirmed by the Senior Specialist Advisor, who advised the Committee that combining the two licences was a popular option amongst the trade.

The setting of hackney carriage and private hire licensing fees was subject to the specific requirements of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. The Act imposed a statutory requirement that the authority advertise the proposed increase of the licence fee in the local press, giving members of the public and the trade an opportunity to object to the proposals within 28 days of the advertisement. The full procedure was included at appendix 2 of the report. If any objections were received from the trade or the public, the matter would be referred back to the General Licensing Committee before any scheme was implemented. If no objections were received, the new fee structure would be implemented from 1 April 2014.

Mr Peter Smith, UNITE Hackney Carriage trade addressed the Committee and raised several concerns with the proposed fees. He made reference to the fact that the fees had last been amended 12 years ago in April 2001. In his view the hackney carriage trade had subsidised the private hire trade for a number of years. While the proposed fees might appear a reduction on paper, it was actually an increase. Mr Smith stressed that the hackney carriage trade had been harshly treated. He suggested a reduced fee arrangement for the hackney carriage proprietors.

He also feared that creating a single dual licence would lower the standards of driving in the trade. Currently hackney carriage drivers were expected to know a location in the town without the aid of a satellite navigation system, unlike drivers of private hire vehicles who sometimes utilise sat-nav systems. Mr Smith stated that he did not think private hire proprietors reach the standard of hackney carriage proprietors despite passing the compulsory knowledge test that all drivers are required to take. While a satellite navigation system would be useful if an address is picked up, problems would arise if an address could not be found by the system. Mr Smith advised that he did not have any objections to equal costs for licensing fees.

Mr Smith made reference to figure 5, as part of 3.13 of the report. He pointed out that the column for driver licence fee did not specify whether the fees charged by neighbouring authorities excluded the DBS fee of £44. He then raised concerns over the low and inconsistent fees proposed for private hire operator vehicles, going up the scale included at figure 3b, as part of 3.8 of the report. Mr Smith concluded by reiterating his concerns with the proposed fees. This included the proposed licence fee for hackney carriage vehicles, the anomaly that led to the hackney carriage trade paying more than required, the annual costs, the potential of standards being lowered in the trade and the cost of operation that Mr Smith felt had not been taken into account sufficiently.

Following a question from the Committee, the Senior Specialist Advisor clarified that currently when an individual passed the knowledge test they had an option to go for a dual licence and advised that there was no

difference in expectations for either licence. The proposed fees were designed to rationalise the service.

Councillor Warner enquired about the quality checking on driver standards amongst the trade. The Senior Specialist Advisor responded that the testing procedure had evolved over the past year. Prior to last year, four questions were asked to drivers at their knowledge test. This had now changed and the questions had been expanded and were regularly added to and at a knowledge test, twenty questions were picked at random. Mr Smith suggested that drivers were supplying questions and answers to each other to assist in the testing phase.

Councillor Liddiard asked how often new routes would be added to the knowledge test. The Senior Specialist Advisor responded that this was down to the Specialist Advisor's discretion but to avoid repetition the body of questions were added to regularly.

Councillor Warner enquired whether drivers were monitored after they had passed their knowledge tests. The Senior Specialist Advisor responded that once an individual passed a knowledge test, they had reached the customer expectation. It was a possibility that practical tests could be completed in an individual's car when required. If a driver failed a knowledge test, they could apply for a re-set with a new set of questions.

Councillor Liddiard suggested the idea of a mystery shopper style test for monitoring drivers. The Senior Specialist Advisor took onboard the suggestion and advised that this could be an option in the future. Currently if an individual contacted the Council regarding a driver, the Council would investigate and the appropriate action carried out.

Councillor Shuttleworth addressed the anomaly that had been raised by Mr Smith and assured that the Council was looking to put it right for the future. Councillor Ansell enquired what would occur if an undercharge occurred. The Senior Specialist Advisor responded that this would be addressed early by the Council's finance team and that it would flag up on the system.

Following a question from the Committee in relation to operator fees for quantity of vehicles, the Senior Specialist Advisor advised that Wealden District Council charged £120 per year irrespective of size of company/individual. For example the company Road Runner who operate 150 vehicles would pay the same cost per vehicle as an operator with one vehicle.

Councillor Hearn asked whether there was a difference in the tests for hackney carriage and private hire drivers. The Senior Specialist Advisor confirmed that the same test applied for all drivers.

Councillor Coles enquired about the consultation process and how many responses are normally received from the Trade. The Senior Specialist Advisor advised that the authority writes to all drivers and invites them to make a representation. This goes above the statutory requirement but the authority can't force a driver to respond.

Councillor Cooke asked about the proposed private operator fees and whether a set fee of £X per private hire vehicle licensed under the operator would be more appropriate. The Senior Specialist Advisor responded that the proposed fees were designed to not disadvantage those with a higher quantity of vehicles and reiterated that Wealden charged a flat fee across the board, regardless of vehicle quantity.

Councillor Murdoch reiterated the anomaly that had been raised by Mr Smith. He asked how regularly the fees would be monitored to avoid a repeat of the mistake that had led to the hackney carriage trade being overcharged. The Senior Specialist Advisor advised that monthly budget monitoring would take place, thus enabling year end budgets to facilitate the requirement for licence fee reviews going forward. The Committee was informed that it would be possible to revisit the fees set in the future.

Councillor West asked what legal steps could be taken to address the fact that hackney carriage drivers had been wrongly levied. The Monitoring Officer responded that this would need to be investigated in a different forum. Councillor Warner, Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee advised that the issue could be looked at by the Scrutiny Committee. This was supported by Councillor Shuttleworth, Deputy Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED: (Unanimously) (1) That the publication of the proposed hackney carriage and private hire licence fees, detailed in the report at figures 3a and 3b be approved in accordance with statutory requirements.

(2) That the approved fees come into effect from 1st April 2014, if no objections are received in during the required consultation period.

The meeting closed at 7.09 pm

Councillor Shuttleworth (Chairman)